
 
AGENDA 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

November 1, 2018  
7:00 PM  

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, November 1, 2018 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized by 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
Call to Order  
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input  
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a 
“Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but 
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Community Interest  
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming 
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and 
safety.  
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Consent Agenda  
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.  
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  

 
A. Consider approving the minutes of the October 18, 2018 City Council meeting. (City 

Secretary Stacy Henderson) 
  



B. Consider adopting Ordinance 2018-11-00886 amending the Code of Ordinances by 
amending Chapter 10 titled “Subdivision Regulations” by updating and adopting the 
revised Capital Improvement Plan and Land Use Assumptions; by amending Article 
10.02 titled “Impact Fees” by amending Section 10.02.006 titled “Calculation” by 
renaming Section 10.02.006 “Calculations of Impact Fees” by replacing Subsection (a) 
of Section 10.02.006 in its entirety with a new Subsection (a) setting forth “road impact 
fees by land use” and adding a new Subsection (b) setting forth “water impact fees by 
meter size” and renumbering the remaining sections of Article 10.02.006; by amending 
Appendix “C” titled “Fee Schedule” by renaming Article 10.000 titled “Road Impact 
Fees by Land Use” and by adding a chart setting forth road impact fees by land use; by 
renaming Article 11.000 titled “Water Impact Fees by Meter Size” and by adding a chart 
setting forth water impact fees by meter size. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Discuss results of the Technology and Communication Survey and authorize the formation of 

a Community Technology Advisory Board for voluntary residents to consider solutions in 
improving the City’s technology and internet services. (Special Projects Coordinator Kent 
Souriyasak) 

 
5. Consider appointing a member to the initial North Central Texas Council of Governments 9-

1-1 Emergency Communications District Board. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
6. Consider cancelling the December 20, 2018 City Council meeting. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Executive Session Agenda  
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the 
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
Closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
7. Executive Session: There are no items scheduled for Executive Session.  
 
8. Adjournment.  
 
Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on  
October 26, 2018.   
 
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 
972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson, Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Consider approving the minutes of the October 18, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 
B. Consider adopting Ordinance 2018-11-00886 amending the Code of Ordinances by 

amending Chapter 10 titled “Subdivision Regulations” by updating and adopting 
the revised Capital Improvement Plan and Land Use Assumptions; by amending 
Article 10.02 titled “Impact Fees” by amending Section 10.02.006 titled 
“Calculation” by renaming Section 10.02.006 “Calculations of Impact Fees” by 
replacing Subsection (a) of Section 10.02.006 in its entirety with a new Subsection 
(a) setting forth “road impact fees by land use” and adding a new Subsection (b) 
setting forth “water impact fees by meter size” and renumbering the remaining 
sections of Article 10.02.006; by amending Appendix “C” titled “Fee Schedule” by 
renaming Article 10.000 titled “Road Impact Fees by Land Use” and by adding a 
chart setting forth road impact fees by land use; by renaming Article 11.000 titled 
“Water Impact Fees by Meter Size” and by adding a chart setting forth water impact 
fees by meter size.  

 
Background Information  
 
Agenda Item 3B: 
 
At the October 4, 2018 City Council meeting the City Council approved amending the Road 
Service Unit Fees and the Water Service Fees. Water impact fees would decrease slightly, and 
road impact fees would have a slight increase. This keeps the City at three percent or less of the 
project cost for all City fees. The following updated impact fees are being considered:  
 

• Road Service Unit of $1,188.21 per vehicle mile  
(For example, to calculate the impact fee for a single-family home, take the service unit 
of $1,188.21 x 4.24 per development unit equaling an impact fee of $5,038.01)  
 

• Water Service Unit of $3,473.00 
(For example, to calculate the impact fee for one-inch water meter take the service unit of 
$3,473.00 x 1.4 the AWWA meter ratio equaling an impact fee of $4,862.20 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the October 18, 2018 City Council meeting.  
2. Ordinance 2018-11-00886 adopting impact fees  
3. Capital Improvement Plan  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

4. Water and Roadways impact fees 
5. Letter from Capital Improvement Advisory Committee  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
   O c t o b e r  1 8 ,  2 0 1 8  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

October 18, 2018 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
 

MINUTES 
 
Call to Order  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney   
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens  
 

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input  
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest  
 
2. Community Interest.  
 
Mayor Olk noted that the technology survey was still available online for those that had not yet had 
an opportunity to take part, and stated that thus far 370 surveys had been received. Mayor Olk also 
noted that the Forest Creek Park Grand Reopening would be held Saturday, October 27 at 9 am, 
and the Fall Sweep Cleanup/Arbor Day event would be held on November 3 from 8 am to Noon.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke announced that the that the City would be celebrating its 60th birthday 
celebration in February 2019 and would be holding an open house.  
 
Mayor Olk presented a Proclamation declaring the month of October 2018 as Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month.  
 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
   O c t o b e r  1 8 ,  2 0 1 8  

Councilmember Fisher stressed the importance of screening and obtaining examinations. She 
encouraged all women to get routine examines to ensure early detection, and also asked that men 
encourage their wife, mother or sister to obtain routine examinations as well.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 
3. Consent Agenda. 

 
A. Consider approving the minutes of the October 4, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 
to 0 vote.   

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Consider board applications to fill a vacant alternate position on the Parks and Open 

Space Board.  
 
Councilmember Baney asked that this item be pulled from the regular agenda and placed on the 
December City Council agenda during the regular appointment process, allowing the Council to 
review all applications received.  
 
Mayor Olk and City Council were in agreement to table this item to the December 7, 2018 City 
Council meeting.  
 
5. Consider amending Fiscal Year Budget 2018-2019 and appropriating funds in the 

amount of $19,055 for parks repairs to general fund account 11-8211-417; 
appropriating funds in the amount of $28,575 for completion of the water meter 
installation program to water fund account 51-6400-233; and appropriating funds in 
the amount of $11,900.50 for bunker gear to general fund account 11-6300-209.   

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation explaining that work was not 
completed to the Kenneth Lewis Park pavilion, and at the end of the fiscal year unused funds were 
returned to the General Fund.  Staff was requesting to appropriate funds from general fund reserves 
to complete the project. Mr. Hilbourn noted that the original contract amount was for $38,110 and 
approximately 50 percent of the work was completed and paid prior to the end of the fiscal year. Mr. 
Hilbourn was requesting an appropriation in the amount of $19,055.  Mr. Hilbourn also explained 
that he was requesting to appropriate funds in the amount of $28,575 to complete the Neptune 
water meter installations.  
 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens explained that Fire-Rescue was requesting an appropriation of funds in the 
amount of $11,900 to fund the purchase of bunker gear that was ordered and budgeted in fiscal year 
17/18, but items were not received until the current budget year.  
  



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
   O c t o b e r  1 8 ,  2 0 1 8  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to appropriate funds in the amount of $19,055 for parks repairs to general 
fund account 11-8211-417; appropriate funds in the amount of $28,575 for 
completion of the water meter installation program to water fund account 51-6400-
233; and appropriate funds in the amount of $11,900.50 for bunker gear to general 
fund account 11-6300-209 in the fiscal year 2018-2019 budget. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with 

TexasBit/APAC/Oldcastle in an amount not to exceed $109,860 for repairs along 
Brockdale Park Road as agreed upon in the Agreement between Brockdale 
Community LLC and the City of Lucas utilizing funds deposited with the City of 
Lucas by Brockdale Community LLC into a restricted account.  

 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster explained that he would attempt to have all repairs made to the 
roadway by November 30; however, the if the contract could not be awarded before this date, 
repairs would begin in the spring.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Councilmember Millsap 

to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Texas 
Bit/APAC/Oldcastle in an amount not to exceed $109,860 using Restricted Cash 
Brockdale account 11-1001-50 and Restricted Cash Brockdale account FY 18-19 11-
1001-55. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
7. Discuss and provide direction to the City Manager to 1) establish an advertising, 

bidding, and construction schedule for the Stinson Road, Blondy Jhune Road, and 
Winningkoff Road projects and 2) discuss project management options of the 
Stinson Road, Blondy Jhune Road, Winningkoff Road, and North Pump Station 
Water Tower projects.  

 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster updated the City Council on the Stinson Road project from Parker 
Road to Bristol Park noting that Lakes Engineering had taken over the design project with an 
estimated completion date for the design and advertising scheduled for December 2018.  
 
Mr. Foerster updated the City Council on the Blondy Jhune Road project from the west bridge to 
Winningkoff Road.  The Council discussed possible traffic routes during construction, access for 
emergency vehicle routes, and estimated timeline of construction taking approximately 14 months.  
 
Mr. Foerster discussed with the City Council on the Blondy Jhune Road project from the Hendrix 
Farms subdivision to the west bridge, the Winningkoff Road from the reverse curve to Snider Lane, 
and the North Pump Station Water Tower projects, and stated that he would like to bid all projects 
at the same time to obtain better pricing.  
 
Mr. Foerster proposed the hiring of a construction management firm given the size and funding 
amounts of the proposed projects, and had requested Lakes Engineering develop a proposal to assist 
the City with project management of all the projects proposed.  
 
The City Council discussed with Mr. Foerster what a construction management firm provided, such 
as keeping the project on schedule and budget, logging of daily activities and reporting those to City 



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
   O c t o b e r  1 8 ,  2 0 1 8  

staff, communicating with the contractor, inspectors and design professionals, and review of all 
invoicing.  The City would provide inspections on all projects.  Mr. Foerster noted that construction 
management of these projects typically cost between 6 to 8 percent of the construction cost.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Fisher, to 

authorize the City Manager to establish a schedule to maximize debt opportunities 
and obtain the most competitive bids for these projects. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Another motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember 
Millsap to authorize the City Manager to negotiate a construction management 
agreement with Lakes Engineering for the Stinson Road, Blondy Jhune Road, 
Winningkoff Road, and North Pump Station Water Tower project.  The motion 
passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Executive Session Agenda  
 
8. Executive Session:  

 
A. Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council will 

convene into Executive Session to discuss the evaluation for the City Manager. 
 

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:54 pm. 
 

9. Reconvene into Regular Session and take any action as a result of the Executive 
Session.  

  
The City Council reconvened from Executive Session at 8:36 pm and took the following action.   
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to amend the City Manager’s contract to adjust the annual compensation 
to $148,000 effective October 1, 2018 and authorize the Mayor to sign the amended 
contract. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
10. Adjournment.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Baney to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 
to 0 vote.  

 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-11-00866 
(Amending Impact Fees) 
Approved: November ,1 2018   1 
 

ORDINANCE 2018-11-00886 
[AMENDING IMPACT FEES] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING 
CHAPTER 10 TITLED “SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS” BY UPDATING 
AND ADOPTING THE REVISED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND 
LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS; BY AMENDING ARTICLE 10.02 TITLED 
“IMPACT FEES” BY AMENDING SECTION 10.02.006 TITLED 
“CALCULATION” BY RENAMING SECTION 10.02.006 
“CALCULATIONS OF IMPACT FEES” BY REPLACING SUBSECTION 
(a) OF SECTION 10.02.006 IN ITS ENTIRETY WITH A NEW 
SUBSECTION (a) SETTING FORTH “ROAD IMPACT FEES BY LAND 
USE” AND ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION (b) SETTING FORTH 
“WATER IMPACT FEES BY METER SIZE” AND RENUMBERING THE 
REMAINING SECTIONS OF ARTICLE 10.02.006; BY AMENDING 
APPENDIX “C” TITLED “FEE SCHEDULE” BY RENAMING ARTICLE 
10.000 TITLED “ROAD IMPACT FEES BY LAND USE” AND BY ADDING 
A CHART SETTING FORTH ROAD IMPACT FEES BY LAND USE; BY 
RENAMING  ARTICLE 11.000 TITLED “WATER IMPACT FEES BY 
METER SIZE” AND BY ADDING A CHART SETTING FORTH WATER 
IMPACT FEES BY METER SIZE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Council of the City of Lucas, Texas previously adopted Ordinance 
No. 2011-11-00692 which imposed impact fees for water and roadway facilities for the financing 
of capital improvements required by new development within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council contracted with BW2 Engineers, Inc. to review and prepare 
an update to the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan upon which impact fees are 
based; and   
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with state law, BW2 Engineers, Inc., a qualified professional 
engineering firm, has completed such plan and submitted the same to the City Council for review 
and consideration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has provided notices and held public hearings in accordance with 
State law for the adoption of the Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvement Plan and the 
imposition of impact fees for the financing of capital improvements required by new development 
within the City and the required Advisory Committee has held the required public hearings; and 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-11-00866 
(Amending Impact Fees) 
Approved: November ,1 2018   2 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens 
to approve and adopt the revised Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan and the Impact 
Fees associated therewith. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the City Council hereby approves and adopts the Land Use 
Assumptions and Capital Improvement Plan From 2016 to 2031, a copy of which shall be 
maintained in the office of the City Secretary and is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
 SECTION 2. That Chapter 10 titled “Subdivision Regulation” of the City of Lucas Code 
of Ordinances is hereby amended by amending Article 10.02 titled “Impact Fees” by amending 
Section 10.02.006 titled “Calculations of impact fees” to read as follows:  
 

“CHAPTER 10 
 

SUBDIVISION 
 

. . .  
 

ARTICLE 10.02   IMPACT FEES 
 

. . . 
 
Sec. 10.02.006  Calculations of impact fees 
 
(a) Road Impact Fees.  See Appendix C, Section 10.000 titled “Road Impact Fees by Land 
Use”. 
 
(b) Water Impact Fees.  See Appendix C, Section 11.000 titled “Water Impact Fees by Meter 
Size”. 
 
(c) The city and the owner may enter into an agreement providing that, in addition to the credit, 
the owner will be reimbursed for all or a portion of the costs of such facilities from impact fees as 
received from other new developments that will use such capital improvements or facility 
expansions. 
 
(d) An owner shall be entitled to a credit against any category of impact fee as provided in any 
written agreement between the city and the owner. 
 
(e) No credit for construction of any facility shall exceed the total amount of impact fees due 
from the development for the same category of improvements. 
 
. . . ” 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-11-00866 
(Amending Impact Fees) 
Approved: November ,1 2018   3 
 

 SECTION 3. That Appendix C titled “Fee Schedule” is hereby amended by amending 
Article 10.000 titled “Road Impact Fees by Land Use” and by amending Article 11.000 titled 
“Water Impact Fees by Meter Size” by adding a chart titled “Water Impact Fees by Meter Size”. 
 

“APPENDICES 
 

. . .  
 

APPENDIX C 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

. . .  
 

ARTICLE 10.000   ROAD IMPACT FEES BY LAND USE 
 

Road Impact Fees by Land Use 
 

 
  



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-11-00866 
(Amending Impact Fees) 
Approved: November ,1 2018   4 
 

ARTICLE 11.000   WATER IMPACT FEES BY METER SIZE 
 

 
 

. . . ” 
 
 SECTION 4. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in conflict 
with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other provisions 
of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect.    
 
 SECTION 5. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not 
affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other than the part 
so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity of the Code of 
Ordinances as a whole. 
 
 SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 1st DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2018. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(10-24-2018:TM103758) 
 

Water Service Unit AWWA Meter Ratio Previous Water Impact Fee Approved Water Impact 
 5/8" & 3/4" Meters 1.0 $3,928 $3,473 

    
1"  1.4 $5,500 $4,862 

    
2"  4.0 $15,714 $13,892 

    
4" 24.0 $98,194 $83,352 

    
6" 50.0 $204,572 $173,650 

    
8" 72.0 $294,583 $250,056 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-11-00866 
(Amending Impact Fees) 
Approved: November ,1 2018   5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvement Plan From 2016 To 2031 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LUCAS 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

F r o m  2 0 1 6  T o  2 0 3 1  
  



2 | P a g e  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

Goals ............................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Development  Process  ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2016-2031 ................................................................................................... 5 

Project Criteria ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

CIP Amendment .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

CIP Project Prioritization ............................................................................................................................... 6 

Roadway and Trail Project CIP At-A-Glance ................................................................................................. 8 

Water System Projects CIP At-A-Glance ...................................................................................................... 30 

 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

Introduction  
 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the City of Lucas is a valuable part of the community 
planning process. The CIP links local infrastructure investments with comprehensive plan 
goals, land use ordinances, and economic development efforts. The CIP bridges the gap 
between planning and spending as well as between the visions of the comprehensive plan and 
the fiscal realities of improving and expanding community facilities. The purpose of the CIP 
policy is to create a fair and consistent process outlining procedures for proposing, evaluating, 
and adopting capital projects creating long-term benefits. 
 
The CIP is a five-year planning document adopted by the City Council to for capital 
improvements related City roadway and trail drainage system as well as for the water system 
infrastructure and facilities. The CIP is not to be confused with the Capital Improvement 
Budget. The Capital Improvement Budget is prepared each year in conjunction with the annual 
Operating Budget. It generally includes only those projects from the first year of the CIP funded 
during the current year and will address additional capital needs that are not included in the CIP, 
such as equipment and vehicles as recommended by the Vehicle Replacement Committee.  
 
A capital project is defined as having a minimum cost of $5,000 resulting in 1) the creation of a 
new fixed asset or 2) enhancement of an existing fixed asset. 
 
Typically, the life expectancy of a capital project is 20 years, but it depends on the classification 
of the asset. Examples of capital projects include construction or expansion of public buildings, 
the acquisition of land for public use, planning, water system improvements, sewer mains as 
defined in the wastewater plan, engineering costs, and street and drainage construction. Example 
of an enhancement to a fixed asset would be reconstruction or reconditioning of streets.  
 
Goals  
 
The following goals help to insure consistence in establ ishing CIP:  
  
1. Preserving public health, welfare, and safety - providing the basic services that ensure 

public health, welfare, and safety is the fundamental responsibility of local government.  
 
2. Anticipating the demands of growth - when related to the comprehensive plan, the 

capital improvement planning process works to anticipate investments in community 
facilities and infrastructure which are needed to serve or shape the pattern of growth 
and development. 

 
3. Supporting economic development - having sound fiscal health, high-quality facilities, 

and services are attractive to business and potential residents.  New corporate investment 
and reinvestment in a community may be influenced by improvements that enhance the 
quality of life for their labor force. Private decisions that bring jobs to an area and new 
taxes to a community are based not only on availability of water and sewer but also upon 
the quality of schools, public safety, recreational opportunities, and many other services.  The 
City of Lucas has identified two areas for commercial development that are located on its 
peripheral boundaries to complement the high quality of life and not hinder or negatively 
impact the quality of life. 



4 | P a g e  
 

 
4. Developing a fair distribution of capital costs - the CIP process allows for public 

discussion of the preferred means of distributing capital costs over time. Funding 
strategies to consider include: 

 
a. Annually, the City earmarks funds in the unrestricted fund balance to save for 

future projects. 
b. Issuance of debt that is paid by both existing and future users of the facility.  
c. User fees may be deemed more appropriate than property taxes.  
d. Federal or state funds may also be available to help finance specific projects.  

 
The CIP process can promote discussion of funding strategies. 

 
5. Avoiding undue tax increases - capital improvement planning is a means of avoiding the 

unpleasant surprise of expensive projects generating large property tax increases. While 
cost impacts cannot always be precisely determined in advance, the CIP fosters 
discussion of the distribution of the tax burden of new capital expenditures over time. 
A corollary benefit of fiscal stability and sound community facility planning can result 
in an improved bond rating. 

 
Development Process  
 
The CIP outlines the major utility infrastructure, streets and drainage, facilities, parks, and other 
improvements needed to serve the citizens, meet growth related needs, and comply with state and 
federal regulations. 
 
Preparation - the Finance Director coordinates the annual update and adoption of the five-year 
CIP as a part of the annual budget process. The City Manager will lead the review and 
prioritization of capital projects for City Council consideration. The Finance Director, City 
Engineer, Development Services Director, and the City Manager shall prioritize and rank projects 
according to the criteria listed in the project criteria section. The CIP includes all costs associated 
with the design, rights- of- way acquisition, and construction of a project, as well as the estimated 
operating and maintenance costs, which impacts future operating budgets. The following 
guidelines will be utilized in developing the CIP: 
 
1. Solicit citizen participation in formulating the identification and prioritization of the CIP. 

 
2. Identify capital improvements through system models, repair and maintenance records, and 

growth demands. 
 

3. Prioritize CIP projects based on input from City staff from all areas related to each project, 
and its effect on operations. 

 
The CIP will be submitted to City Council for review, revision, and approval.  It will be reviewed 
and revised annually to include updated information. 
  



5 | P a g e  
 

Control - all capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget.  The Finance 
Director and City Manager must certify the availability of resources before any capital project 
contract is presented to the City Council for approval. 
 
Financing Programs - recognizing that long-term debt is usually a more expensive financing 
method, alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued. When debt is issued, 
it will be used to acquire major assets with expected longevity which equal or exceed the average 
length of the debt issue. Impact fees, assessments, pro-rata charges, or other fees may be used to 
fund capital projects. 
 
Reporting - periodic financial reports will be prepared to enable the Department Directors to 
manage their capital budgets and to enable the Finance Department to monitor and control the 
budget as authorized. Capital project status reports will be presented to City Council. 
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2016-2020 
 
Departments will include as part of their project proposal: 
 
1. A Project Summary providing an overview and justification of the project.  
 
2. A Fiscal Overview that includes estimated cost estimates and funding strategies that 

proposes funding options must be identified including: 
 

a. Operating Revenues 
b. Reserves and/or Debt 
c. Grants 
d. Partnerships with Other Organizations 
e. Impact Fees 
f. Developer Funded 
 
Expense estimates must be identified in the section for design, site acquisition, construction, 
estimated annual maintenance and operating cost impact based on the current estimated cost 
and values. To help manage cash flows, the financial plan must be complete to ascertain the 
impact on multiple fiscal years. 

 
3. A Project Description section will provide additional project detail such as estimated linear 

feet, square feet or other applicable measurement, language that explains the overall need for 
the project as well as the benefit to the community. 

4. Proposed Schedule identifying major milestones such as the design, bid, and 
construction phases. 

 
5. Identification of the Project Manager. 
 
Additional information may be requested by the City Manager and/or the members of the City 
Council. 
 
Project Criteria 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

The evaluation of proposed capital projects will be in accordance with the following criteria:  
 
1. Public Health, Safety, and Welfare - projects improving the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the community will be rated with highest priority. Projects must demonstrate 
the benefit provided to the community and possible risks from not completing the 
project. Compliance with state and federal mandates fall under this category. 

 
2. Quality of Life - projects enhancing the quality of life enjoyed by citizens, such as equestrian 

and hiking trails throughout the city, will receive a high priority. 
 
3. Funding - funding availability considerations are included when ranking projects. Grants 

and funding partnerships are considered first followed by operating revenues, fund 
balance, and debt.  Debt may be issued to fund capital projects after alternative funding 
sources are exhausted. 

 
4. Economic Development - projects enhancing and promoting the establishment of commercial 

business with the best use for a parcel of land that is zoned commercial will be given the 
highest priority. 

 
CIP Amendment 
 
Amendments to the CIP effecting the current fiscal year must be recommended by the City 
Manager and approved by the City Council through a budget amendment. Amendments will be 
considered according to project scoring criteria as previously identified. Higher priority will be 
given to projects necessary for the public health, safety, and funding availability. 
 
Any plan must be based upon an estimate of certain characteristics. These characteristics may 
change and vary from time to time and when they do, the CIP should be updated. It may require 
that certain proposed improvements be implemented immediately or even delayed. Further, this 
plan is meant to be flexible.  It is to be used as a tool to help establish a course of action.  
 

CIP Project Prioritization 
 
Using the criteria identified in the Project Criteria section of this document will assist staff and 
ultimately the elected officials in rating each project to facilitate prioritization.  There are various 
rating schemes available for establishing capital improvements priorities. The following set of 
standards are used as the evaluation method for the City: 
 
• High - essential capital improvements are projects needed to promote and/or protect the 
public welfare and safety.  Projects classified under this category are projects of the highest priority. 
 
• Routine - necessary capital improvements are projects which are needed for the 
convenience and conservation of endangered resources, or for the completion of partially 
completed projects. Projects of this type include improvements which are considered necessary for 
a progressive growing community and for problems that do not negatively impact public welfare. 
 
• Low - desirable capital improvements are projects which protect property, replace obsolete 



7 | P a g e  
 

facilities, reduce operating costs and add to the attractiveness of the community. Projects of this 
type are not considered high priority and may be delayed or removed from the CIP as funding 
changes. Conversely, these types of projects can be brought forth when budget surpluses or 
additional funding sources are identified. 
 
• Deferrable - these capital improvements are projects of the lowest priority. These projects 
can be postponed or eliminated from the CIP because of cost, timing, or need. 

  



8 | P a g e  
 

Roadway and Trail Project CIP At-A-Glance 
 
The following table is a quick reference guide that summarizes the CIP Roadway and Trail Projects.  
It indicates the fiscal year in which the project is scheduled to begin, a project number for 
identification purposes, the recommended priority of implementation, the preliminary estimated 
costs for improvements, and the anticipated funding sources.  
 

STARTING 
IN FISCAL 

YEAR 

PROJECT 
NO. PRIORITY PROJECT ESTIMATED 

COST 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2016-2017 

1 High 
Winningkoff 
Road Reverse 

Curve 

$964,000 
($xxxxx 
Actual) 

Impact Fees 
and Certificate 
of Obligation 

2 High 

Stinson 
Road/W. Lucas 

Road 
Intersection 

Improvements 

$453,000 
($xxxx 
Actual) 

Certificates of 
Obligation, 
Reginal Toll 
Revenue, 
Collin County 
Bond, 
City of Lucas 
General Fund 

3 High W. Lucas Road 
Widening 

$1,500,000 
($xxxxx 
Actual 

Including 
Maintenance) 

Regional Toll 
Revenue, City 
of Lucas 
General Fund, 
and Collin 
County Bond 

2016-2017 4 Routine Street 
Maintenance 

$750,000 
($159,403 
Actual) 

City of Lucas 
General Fund 

2017-2018 

5 High 

Country Club 
Road/Estates 

Parkway 
Intersection 

Improvements 

$350,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

6 High 

Winningkoff 
Road Middle 

Section from the 
Reverse Curve 
to Snider Lane 

$1,400,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

7 Routine E. Winningkoff 
Road Trailhead $240,000 

$120,000 City 
of Lucas 
General Fund 
and $120,000 
Collin County 
Park Board 
Grant 



9 | P a g e  
 

STARTING 
IN FISCAL 

YEAR 

PROJECT 
NO. PRIORITY PROJECT ESTIMATED 

COST 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

8 Routine Street 
Maintenance 

$750,000 
($566,784 + 

234,051 Actual) 

11-8209-301 
 
City of Lucas 
General Fund 

2018-2019 

9 High 

Stinson Road 
Southern 

Section from 
Parker Road to 

Bristol Park 

$2,267,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

10 High 

Blondy Jhune 
Road 

Reconstruction 
from Western 

Bridge to 
Winningkoff 

Road 

$2,700,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

11 Low 
Northeast 

Equestrian and 
Pedestrian Trails 

$xxx To Be 
Determined 

12 Routine Street 
Maintenance $750,000 City of Lucas 

General Fund 

2019-2020 
13 High 

Stinson Road 
Northern 

Section from 
Bentwater Drive 
to the Reverse 

Curve 

$2,000,000 To Be 
Determined 

14 Routine Streets 
Maintenance $750,000 City of Lucas 

General Fund 

2020-2021 

15 High 

Winningkoff 
Road Southern 
Section from E. 
Lucas Road to 

the Reverse 
Curve 

$1,900,000 To Be 
Determined 

16 Routine Street 
Maintenance $750,000 City of Lucas 

General Fund 

17 Low Exercise and 
Leisure Loop $xxxxx To Be 

Determined 



10 | P a g e  
 

STARTING 
IN FISCAL 

YEAR 

PROJECT 
NO. PRIORITY PROJECT ESTIMATED 

COST 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

18 Low 
Southwest 

Multipurpose 
Trails 

$xxxx  
To Be 
Determined 

2021-2026 19 Routine 

Street 
Maintenance 

($1,000,000 per 
year) 

$5,000,000 City of Lucas 
General Fund 

2026-2031 20 Routine 

Street 
Maintenance 

($1,000,000 per 
year) 

$5,000,000 City of Lucas 
General Fund 

 
  



11 | P a g e  
 

 

 
  

WINNINGKOFF ROAD REVERSE CURVE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2016-2017 1 Roadway Complete High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$144,645 Design Contract 
$502,411 Construction Contract 
$100,480 Contingency 
$747,536 Total Budget 
$964,000 March 2017 Estimate 
$xxxx Actual 

Impact Fees and Certificate of  Obligation 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Replace existing asphalt pavement with concrete pavement.  The eastern curve will be designed to 
accommodate a school bus and an auto passing in opposite directions.  The western curve will be 
replaced with a three-way stop sign controlled intersection at Forestview Drive.  The project length 
is approximately 0.5 miles. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 



12 | P a g e  
 

 
STINSON ROAD/W. LUCAS ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2016-2017 2 Roadway Complete High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$91,130 Design Contract 
$391,572 Construction Contract 
$97,000 Contingency 
$579,702 Total Budget* 
$453,000 March 2017 Estimate 
$xxxx Actual 

Certificates of Obligation, Reginal Toll Revenue, Collin 
County Bond, City of Lucas General Fund  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Provide for two northbound Stinson Road lanes on approach to W. Lucas Road:  one left turn and 
one right turn.  Improve drainage along the W. Lucas Road. *The addition of  a fourth leg to Country 
Club Road/W. Lucas Road intersection was added to design of  this project in early 2018. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 
  



13 | P a g e  
 

 
W. LUCAS ROAD WIDENING 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2016-2017 3 Roadway Complete High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost of  Capacity Improvements Source of  Funding 
$72,250 Design Contract 
$1,172,780 Construction Contract 
$237,609 Roadway Maintenance* 
$254,970 Contingency 
$1,737,609 Total Budget 
$1,500,000 May 2013 Estimate 
$xxxxx Actual  

$1,200,000 in Regional Toll Revenue, $244,414 in Collin 
County Bonds, and $55,586 City of Lucas General Fund 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Widen W. Lucas Road from Willow Springs School to Angel Parkway by adding a center and left 
turn lane.  The project length is approximately 1.5 miles.  *During the construction of the three 
lanes, numerous areas of the existing roadway required full depth repairs. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 
  



14 | P a g e  
 

STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2016-2017 4 Roadway Complete Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$750,000 Total Budget 
$159,403 Actual* 

City of Lucas General Fund  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
Project List: 

1. Daytona Avenue/CR 391 
2. Horseman Drive 
3. Skyview Drive 
4. Edgefield Lane Turnaround 

*Most of  the funds budgeted for FY 2016-2017 were shifted to FY 2017-2018 to accommodate the 
contractor’s schedule. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2017 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 

  



15 | P a g e  
 

COUNTRY CLUB ROAD/ESTATES PARKWAY INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 5 Roadway Design High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$82,700 Design 
$267,300 for Construction 
$350,000 Total Budget 
$350,000 March 2017 Estimate 

Certificate of Obligation  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Add a right turn lane from eastbound Estates Parkway to southbound Country Club Road.  Add a 
left turn lane from northbound Country Club Road to westbound Estates Parkway. TxDOT may 
add funding to this project to improve drainage near the intersection. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 

  



16 | P a g e  
 

WINNINGKOFF ROAD MIDDLE SECTION 
FROM THE REVERSE CURVE TO SNIDER LANE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 6 Roadway Design High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$215,850 Design Contract 
$1,184,150 for Construction 
$1,400,000 Total Budget 
$1,400,000 March 2017 Estimate 

Certificate of Obligation  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Reconstruct 0.5 miles of Winningkoff Road with concrete pavement and improve drainage. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2022 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 
 

  



17 | P a g e  
 

 
TRAILHEAD ON E. WINNINGKOFF ROAD 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 7 Trail Complete Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$240,000 Estimate 
$240,000 Actual  

$120,000 City of Lucas General Fund and $120,000 Collin 
County Park Board Grant 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Trailhead on E. Winningkoff Road was constructed during Fiscal Year 2016-2017. The Trailhead 
provides parking, a corral, restroom facilities, and other amenities. Additional work, such as marking 
the trail and maintenance was completed in Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Development Services Director 

  



18 | P a g e  
 

 
STREET MAINTENANCE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 8 Roadway Complete Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$882,335 Total Budget 
$864,431 Actual 

City of  Lucas General Fund 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
Project List: 

1. Blondy Jhune Road 
2. Stinson Road 
3. Lewis Lane 
4. Rock Ridge Road  
5. White Rock Trail 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 

 
  



19 | P a g e  
 

 
STINSON ROAD SOUTHERN SECTION 

FROM PARKER ROAD TO BRISTOL PARK 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 9 Roadway Design High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$264,910 Design Contract 
$2,002,090 for Construction 
$2,267,000 Total Budget 
$2,267,000 March 2017 Estimate 

Certificates of Obligation 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
This concrete project extends from Parker Road to Bristol Park, and it is about a mile long.  It does 
not include the Muddy Creek Bridge.  A straight, flat two-lane roadway is planned to have a 
roundabout at Highland Drive.   
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 



20 | P a g e  
 

 
BLONDY JHUNE ROAD MIDDLE AND EASTERN SECTIONS 

FROM THE WESTERN BRIDGE TO WINNINGKOFF ROAD 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2017-2018 10 Roadway Design High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$192,415 Design Contracts 
$2,584,685 for Construction 
$2,700,000 Total Budget 
$2,700,000 May 2013 Estimate 

Certificates of Obligation 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Replace existing asphalt roadway with a two-lane concrete roadway from the western bridge to 
Winningkoff Road.  The project length is about a mile long and has two different pavement cross 
sections to accommodate minimizing the impact to the tree canopy. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2017 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

 

 
  



21 | P a g e  
 

 
NORTHEAST EQUESTRIAN AND PEDESTRIAN TRAILS 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2018-2019 11 Trail Planning Low 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$$$ To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Obtain easements and construct equestrian and pedestrian trails radiating from the E. Winningkoff 
Trailhead to the west and south.  These trails would generally follow Blondy Jhune Road, E. 
Winningkoff Road, Welborn Lane, and White Rock Creek (from Winningkoff Road to Snider Lane) 
The purpose is to link to other trails such as the Trinity Trail, and keep equestrian trails separate 
from multipurpose trails. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2019 2026 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Development Services Director 

 
 
 
 

STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2018-2019 12 Roadway Planning Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$750,000 City of Lucas General Fund  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



22 | P a g e  
 

 
STINSON ROAD NORTHERN SECTION 

FROM BENTWATER DRIVE TO THE REVERSE CURVE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2020-2021 13 Roadway Planning High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$2,000,000 August 2018 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Replace existing asphalt roadway with a concrete, two-lane roadway from Bentwater Drive to the 
reverse curve at 405 Stinson Road.  It does not include the Muddy Creek Bridge and is about 0.66 
miles in length.  This is a straight and flat roadway with no four-way intersections.   
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2020 2023 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



23 | P a g e  
 

 
STREET MAINTENANCE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2019-2020 14 Roadway Planning Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$750,000 City of Lucas General Fund  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



24 | P a g e  
 

 
WINNINGKOFF ROAD SOUTHERN SECTION 

FROM E. LUCAS ROAD TO THE REVERSE CURVE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2020-2021 15 Roadway Planning High 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$2,000,000 August 2018 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Replace existing asphalt roadway with a concrete, two-lane roadway from E. Lucas Road to the 
Reverse Curve north of Christian Lane.  The project is about 0.6 miles in length.  A new culvert 800 
feet north of E. Lucas Road will be part of this project. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2020 2024 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



25 | P a g e  
 

 
STREET MAINTENANCE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2020-2021 16 Roadway Planning Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$750,000 City of Lucas General Fund  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2020 2021 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



26 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

EXERCISE AND LEISURE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2020-2021 17 Trail Planning Low 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$$$ To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Construct a five-mile loop starting a City Hall and proceeding south along Country Club Road, west 
along W. Lucas Road, north along future Allison Lane, east along Estates Parkway, and south along 
Country Club Road ending at City Hall.  The purpose of the loop is to provide a separate facility 
away from the vehicular traffic.  The width of the loop pavement should be between seven and 14 
feet depending on location and a desire to create a two-way facility.  The loop may be constructed 
from crushed granite and/or concrete. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2021 2026 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Development Services Director 

 
  



27 | P a g e  
 

 
SOUTHEAST MULTIPURPOSE TRAILS 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2020-2021 18 Trail Planning Low 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$$$ To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Obtain easements and construct multipurpose trails south of W. Lucas Road and west of Southview 
Drive.  These trails would connect with the Exercise and Leisure Loop along W. Lucas Road at 
Willow Springs School and the TP&L Powerlines in the southern part of the city.  A trailhead may 
be included as part of this project. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2021 2026 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Development Services Director 

  



28 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2021-2022 19 Roadway Planning Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$5,000,000 City of Lucas General Fund  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
FY 2021-2022 $1,000,000 
FY 2022-2023 $1,000,000 
FY 2023-2024 $1,000,000 
FY 2024-2025 $1,000,000 
FY 2025-2026 $1,000,000 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2021 2026 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



29 | P a g e  
 

 
 

STREET MAINTENANCE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Project 
No. 

Category Project Status Priority 

2026-2031 20 Roadway Planning Routine 
FISCAL OVERVIEW 
Cost Source of  Funding 
$5,000,000 City of Lucas General Fund  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
FY 2026-2027 $1,000,000 
FY 2027-2028 $1,000,000 
FY 2028-2029 $1,000,000 
FY 2029-2030 $1,000,000 
FY 2030-2031 $1,000,000 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Project Begin Year Project End Year 
2026 2031 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 

  



30 | P a g e  
 

Water System Projects CIP At-A-Glance 
 
The following table is a quick reference guide that summarizes the CIP Water System Projects.  It indicates 
the fiscal year in which the project is scheduled to begin, a project number for identification purposes, the 
recommended priority of implementation, the preliminary estimated costs for improvements, and the 
anticipated funding sources. 
 

STARTING IN 
FISCAL YEAR 

PRIORITY 
NO. and PROJECT 

ESTIMATED 
COST 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with rights-of-way, 
easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not included in the following 

information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 
2016-2017 1.  Parker Road 12-Inch Waterline Phase 1 – 

Section 1 from Stinson Road to Enchanted Way 
$292,037 
($309,272 
Actual) 

Capital 
Improvements 

Water Fund 
 2.  Parker Road Eight-Inch Waterline Phase 2 

from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail 
$326,004 
($527,234 
Actual) 

Capital 
Improvements 

Water Fund 
 3.  North Pump Station Improvements: 

A) Add 500,000 Gallon Water Tower 
B) Wiltshire Court Eight-Inch Waterline 
Connection 
C) Replace Existing Pump Station 
D) System Pressure Reducing Valves 

$2,421,513 Capital 
Improvements 

Water Fund 

 4.  Automatic Flushing Valves (AFVs) for Non-
Looped Waterlines -- The location of these AFVs 
will be installed where looping of the waterlines is 
not practical. 

$400,000 Capital 
Improvements 

Water Fund 

 5.  Meter Replacement $629,860 Capital 
Improvements 

Water Fund 
 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 TOTAL XXX  

2018-2019 6.  Waterline Looping $1,200,000 To Be 
Determined 

 7.  Parker Road Eight-Inch Waterline Phase 3 
from Santa Fe Trail to Stinson Road 

$-0- TxDOT 

 8.  Rollingwood Circle/Choice Lane/Lakeview 
Drive Six-Inch Waterline -- This project will 
improve water quality and fire protection to 97 
homes. 

$432,165 To Be 
Determined 

 9.  A) Edgefield Lane/W. Lucas Road Six-Inch 
Waterline 
B) Cedar Bend Trail/E. Lucas Road Six-Inch 
Waterline -- These two projects will improve 
water quality and fire protection to 32 homes. 

$113,530 To Be 
Determined 

 10.  Graham Lane and Rock Ridge Court Eight-
Inch Waterline Loop from Country Club Road to 
Rock Ridge Road 

$571,775 To Be 
Determined 

 2018-2019 TOTAL XXXX  
 11.  Snider Lane Eight-Inch Waterline from 

Shady Lane to Sterling Brown Lane -- This 
$594,549 Impact Fees 



31 | P a g e  
 

STARTING IN 
FISCAL YEAR 

PRIORITY 
NO. and PROJECT 

ESTIMATED 
COST 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with rights-of-way, 
easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not included in the following 

information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 
project is a requirement of the Lakeview Downs 
subdivision. Fire hydrants to be added and will 
improve water quality on the east side of Lucas. 

 12.  Glencove Circle and Crestview Circle Six-
Inch Extensions to Brockdale Park Road Eight-
Inch Loops -- This project will improve water 
quality and fire protection to 15 homes and add 
fire hydrants to the area. 

$224,255 To Be 
Determined 

2019-2020 13.  Hickory Hill Street Eight-Inch Waterline 
from Stinson Road to Brookhaven Drive -- This 
project will improve water quality and fire 
protection and add fire hydrants to 12 homes. 

$226,383 To Be 
Determined 

 

 14.  Manor Lane Eight-Inch Waterline -- This will 
replace an undersized four-inch line, add fire 
hydrants, and improve the water looping between 
Estelle Lane and Winningkoff Road. 

$313,951 To Be 
Determined 

 

 15.  A) Rock Ridge Road 12-Inch Waterline from 
Estates Parkway to Fairbrook Circle and B) 
Fairbrook Circle Eight-Inch Waterline -- This will 
replace existing six-inch waterlines and bring 
Fairbrook Circle into the Lucas Waterworks 
System. 

$491,953 To be 
Determined 

 16.  Repaint McGarity 200,000-Gallon Ground 
Storage Tank 

$150,150 To Be 
Determined 

 17.  Enchanted Way/Brookhaven Drive Eight-
Inch Waterline -- This project will improve water 
quality and fire protection to 23 homes. 

$203,262 To Be 
Determined 

 18.  Rock Ridge Road/Lovejoy High School 
Eight-Inch Waterline Loop -- This project 
improves the looping on the west side of the city 
and at the high school. 

$56,773 To Be 
Determined 

 2019-2020 TOTAL XXXXX  
2020-2026 19.  McGarity 950,000 Gallon Ground Storage 

Tank 
$1,279,093 To Be 

Determined 
 20.  A) Shiloh Drive/Toole Drive Six-Inch 

Waterline Replacement 
B) Braeburn Way Eight-Inch Waterline Loop 

$190,546 To Be 
Determined 

 21.  Fairbrook Circle/Graham Lane Eight-Inch 
Waterline Loop 

$256,453 To Be 
Determined 

 22.  Lewis Lane Eight-Inch Waterline from 
Shepherds Creek Drive to Green Acres Lane 

$300,113 To Be 
Determined 

 23.  Angel Parkway 12-Inch Waterline from 
McGarity Lane to Estates Parkway 

$425,539 To Be 
Determined 

 24.  Ingram Lane Six- and 12-Inch Waterlines 
from McGarity Lane to W. Lucas Road 

$836,217 To Be 
Determined 



32 | P a g e  
 

STARTING IN 
FISCAL YEAR 

PRIORITY 
NO. and PROJECT 

ESTIMATED 
COST 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with rights-of-way, 
easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not included in the following 

information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 
 25.  Estates Road Eight-Inch Waterline $232,014 To Be 

Determined 
 26.  Chisholm Trail/Caman Park Drive and 

Turnberry Lane/Highland Drive Eight-Inch 
Waterline Loops 

$322,203 To Be 
Determined 

 27.  Stinson Road/Enchanted Way Eight-Inch 
Waterline 

$142,278 To Be 
Determined 

 28.  Stinson Road/E. Lucas Road Eight-Inch 
Waterline 

$147,827 To Be 
Determined 

 29.  Rock Creek Estates Six-Inch Waterline $175,610 To Be 
Determined 

 30.  Stinson Road 12-Inch Waterline Connector $39,189 To Be 
Determined 

 31.  Repaint North Pump Station 750,000 Gallon 
Ground Storage Tank 

$409,303 To Be 
Determined 

 32.  Repaint McGarity 350,000 Ground Storage 
Tank 

$228,690  

 33.  A) Parker Road 12-Inch Waterline Phase 1 - 
Section 2 
B) Parker Road/Brookhaven Drive Eight-Inch 
Waterline 

$835,239 To Be 
Determined 

 2020-2026 TOTAL XXXXX  
2026-2031 34.  Replace McGarity 500,000 Gallon Water 

Tower 
$1,372,140 To Be 

Determined 
 35.  Rock Ridge Road 12-Inch Waterline from 

Exchange Parkway to Fairbrook Circle 
$224,712 To Be 

Determined 
 36.  Lakeview Downs/Trinity Park Six-Inch 

Waterlines and Eight-Inch Loop 
$1,135,688 To Be 

Determined 
 37.  Forest Grove Road/Horseman Drive/Orr 

Road Six- and Eight-Inch Waterlines 
$867,422 To Be 

Determined 
 38.  Orr Road (North) Eight-Inch Waterline $426,327 To Be 

Determined 
 39.  PR 5252 Six-Inch Waterline Replacement $93,486  
 40.  Repaint North Pump Station 500,000 Gallon 

Ground Storage Tank 
$297,124  

    
 
 
  



33 | P a g e  
 

 
PARKER ROAD 12-INCH WATERLINE PHASE 1 – SECTION 1 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Starting in 
Fiscal Year 

Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2016-2017 1 Water 2018 - Compete 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Cost  Source of Funding  
$62,900 Design 
$244,796 Contract 
$36,879 Contingency 
$10,000 Adjustment FY 16/17 
$354,575 Total Budget 
$292,037 September 2016  Estimate 
$309,272 Actual 

Capital Improvement Water Fund 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is needed to improve infrastructure and to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening 
requiring Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $11,500.00 $11,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Trench Safety 2,115 $1.50 $3,173 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,100 $60.00 $126,000 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by bore and jacking 25 $320.00 $8,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 15 $42.00 $630 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 25 $280.00 $7,000 
Furnish & install 12" Bend 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $800.00 $800 
Furnish & install 12" Tee 4 $1,200.00 $4,800 
Furnish & install 12" Valve 5 $1,500.00 $7,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 1 $500.00 $500 
Furnish & install 12"x8" Reducer 1 $1,200.00 $1,200 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, lead and 6" valve 3 $4,000.00 $12,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 16 $1,500.00 $24,000 
Block Sod 500 $7.00 $3,500 
Seeding 3,000 $1.25 $3,750 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $25,342 $25,342 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $25,342 $25,342 



34 | P a g e  
 

 
Total: $292,037 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with rights-of-
way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not included in the 
following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



35 | P a g e  
 

 
PARKER ROAD EIGHT-INCH WATER LINE PHASE 2 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2016-2017 2 Water Complete  
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$ 41,150 Design 
$ 447,218 Construction Contract 
$ 60,285 Contingency 
$ 548,653 Total Budget 
$ 326,004 September 2016 Estimate* 
$ 527,234 Actual 

Capital Improvement Water Fund 
and Certificate of  Obligation 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is needed to improve infrastructure and to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening 
requiring Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road.  The scope of this project 
was change.  *The original alignment was along Lewis Lane between Shepherds Creek Drive and Parker 
Road and then along Parker Road from Lewis Lane to Santa Fe Trail.  The constructed alignment is from 
Lewis Lane and McCreary Drive via new and existing easements and the TxDOT right-of-way.  A six-
inch waterline was bored most of the length of the project to avoid removing trees and reducing the 
impacts to property owners.  
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2018 - Compete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $12,850.00 $12,850 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Erosion Control 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Trench Safety 3,500 $1.50 $5,250 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,500 $42.00 $147,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $280.00 $22,400 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC Creek Crossing, by bore and jacking  50 $330.00 $16,500 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $4,050.00 $4,050 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 4 $500.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 4 $4,000.00 $16,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Block Sod 2,500 $7.00 $17,500 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

5,500 $1.25 $6,875 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $28,290 $28,290 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $28,290 $28,290  

Total: $326,004 



36 | P a g e  
 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with rights-of-
way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not included in the 
following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



37 | P a g e  
 

 
NORTH PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2016-2017 3 Water Design 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$ 185,000 Design 
$ 2,777,240 for Construction 
$ 2,962,240 Total Budget 
$ 2,267,692 September 2016 Estimate 

Capital Improvement Water Fund 
and Certificate of  Obligation 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
A) Provide new elevated storage tank. This will allow for the elimination of the lower pressure plane.   
B) This will allow the ground storage at the North Pump Station to be filled by the upper pressure plane 
eliminating water service to seven homes. 
C) Replace Existing Pump Station 
D) System Pressure Reducing Valves 
E) Update SCADA hardware and software 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS  

Estimated 
Quantity 

Unit Cost Cost 

A) Add 500,000 Gallon Water Tower    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $60,000.00 $60,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Furnish & install 500,000 Gallon Elevated Storage Tank 1 $1,100,000.00 $1,100,000 
Furnish & install Yard Piping/Valving 1 $20,000.00 $20,000 
Furnish & install Electrical 1 $45,000.00 $45,000 
Furnish & install Tank Piping/Valving 1 $20,000.00 $20,000 
Site Work 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

4,000 $1.25 $5,000 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $118,440 $118,440 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (8%) 1 $118,440 $118,440 
B) Wiltshire Court Connection     
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $3,850.00 $3,850 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $500.00 $500 
Erosion Control 1 $2,550.00 $2,550 
Trench Safety 975 $1.50 $1,463 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 975 $42.00 $40,950 



38 | P a g e  
 

Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 120 $90.00 $10,800 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $4,300.00 $4,300 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Block Sod 700 $7.00 $4,900 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

1,500 $1.25 $1,875 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $8,525 $8,525 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $8,525 $8,525 
C) Replace Existing Pump Station    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $17,000.00 $17,000 
Erosion Control 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Furnish & install Pumps 3 $20,000.00 $60,000 
Furnish & construct Pump Building 1 $120,000.00 $120,000 
Furnish & install Pipes and Valves 1 $50,000.00 $50,000 
Furnish & install Electrical 1 $100,000.00 $100,000 
Site Work 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

2,000 $1.25 $2,500 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $37,537 $37,537 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1 $37,537 $37,537 
D) System Pressure Reducing Valves    
Furnish separate cost of product and cost to Install Residential 
Pressure Reducing Valve 

1,200 $200.00  $240,000 

E) Update SCADA    
 1 $100,000.00 $100,000  

Total: $2,367,692 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



39 | P a g e  
 

AUTOMATIC FLUSHING VALVES FOR NON-LOOPED WATERLINES 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2016-2017 4 Water Complete 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$ 400,000 Actual 
$ 400,000 September 2016 Estimate 

Capital Improvement Water Fund  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
The location of these AFVs will be installed where looping of the waterlines is not practical.  The scope of 
this project was changed.  Temporary AFVs were installed and the looping of waterlines was moved to other 
projects. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Public Works Supervisor 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Furnish separate cost of product and cost to Install 
Automatic Flushing Valve 

25 $4,000.00 $60,000 

Install looped water lines at locations to be determined  $340,000  
Total: $400,000 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

  



40 | P a g e  
 

NEPTUNE METERS REPLACEMENT 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2017-2018 5 Water Construction  
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$ 629,860 Contract 
$ 748,785 September 2016 Estimate 

Capital Improvement Water Fund  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Replace all existing RG3 meters and registers with Neptune equipment.  The scope of this project was 
changed from an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) project to an Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) 
project.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Meters ? $?? $629,860  
Total: $629,860 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



41 | P a g e  
 

WATERLINE LOOPING 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2016-2017 6 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,200,000 TBD 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Loop waterlines to enhance the water system quality and fire protection. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2022 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Install waterline loops at locations to be determined  $1,200,000  

Total: $1,200,000 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

  



42 | P a g e  
 

 
PARKER ROAD EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE PHASE 3 

(FROM SANTA FE TRAIL TO STINSON ROAD) 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2017-2018 7 Water Construction 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$-0- TxDOT Funding of  $238,000 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is needed to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening requiring Lucas to abandon 
an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road between McCreary Road and Stinson Road.  Staff worked 
closely with TxDOT to obtain funding from TxDOT for this project. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

 
Total: $-0- 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



43 | P a g e  
 

 
ROLLINGWOOD CIRCLE/CHOICE LANE/LAKEVIEW DRIVE SIX-INCH 

WATERLINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project 

2018-2019 8 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$432,165  September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection for 97 homes. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $17,250.00   $17,250  
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1 $7,500.00   $7,500  
Temporary erosion control 1 $8,500.00   $8,500  
Cut and Plug Existing 2" Water Line 3 $450.00   $1,350  
Cut and Plug Existing 8" Water Line 1 $500.00   $500  
Furnish and Install Trench Safety system 4550 $1.75   $7,963  
Cut Out and Remove Existing 8" Water Line as needed 1 $2,250.00   $2,250  
Cut Out and Remove Existing Reducer and 2" Water Line 3 $1,500.00   $4,500  
Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1 $500.00   $500  
Furnish and Install 6" 11.25 Degree Bend 4 $675.00   $2,700  
Furnish and Install 6" 90 Degree Bend 7 $650.00   $4,550  
Furnish and Install 6"x6" Tee 1 $1,000.00   $1,000  
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 4 $1,500.00   $6,000  
Furnish and Install Fire Hydrant, Valve and Riser 4 $3,750.00   $15,000  
Furnish and Install 6" waterline w/Class "B" Embedment 4550 $ 45.00   $204,750  
Furnish & Install 6" DR-18 w/14" Steel by Boring and Jacking 180 $ 275.00   $49,500  
Furnish and Install Long Service Water Line 1 $ 1,250.00   $1,250  
Furnish and Install Short Service Water Line 8 $ 800.00   $6,400  
Furnish and Install Service Line Over 250 LF 2 $ 5,000.00   $10,000  
Furnish and Place Block Sodding 1150 $ 7.00   $8,050  
Furnish and Place Grass Seed 2500 $ 1.25   $3,125  
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $36,263.75   $36,264  
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1 $36,263.75   $36,264   

Total: $432,165 



44 | P a g e  
 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



45 | P a g e  
 

 
EDGEFIELD LANE/W. LUCAS ROAD SIX-INCH WATERLINE LOOP 

CEDAR BEND TRAIL/E. LUCAS ROAD SIX-INCH WATERLINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2018-2019 9 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$113,530 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 32 homes. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

A)  Edgefield Lane/West Lucas Road Six-Inch Waterline Loop 
Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Temporary erosion control including operational control of 
SW3P 

1 $4,000.00 $4,000 

Cut and Plug Existing 2" Water Line 1 $450.00 $450 
Furnish and Install Trench Safety system, design and 
implementation 

535 $1.75 $936 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 12" Water Line as needed, 
Furnish and Install 12"x6" Tee 

2 $2,750.00 $5,500 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 6" Water Line as needed, Furnish 
and Install 6"x6" Tee 

1 $1,850.00 $1,850 

Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1 $500.00 $500 
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 2 $1,500.00 $3,000 
Furnish and Install Fire Hydrant, Including 6" Gate Valve and 
Riser 

1 $3,750.00 $3,750 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/Class "B" 
Embedment 

535 $45.00 $24,075 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/14" Steel Casing 
by Boring and Jacking 

50 $275.00 $13,750 

Furnish and Install Long Service Water Line 2 $1,250.00 $2,500 
Furnish and Place Block Sodding, including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

100 $7.00 $700 

Furnish and Place Grass Seed, including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

280 $1.25 $350 



46 | P a g e  
 

 
Edgefield Subtotal: $66,511 

B) Cedar Bend Trail/E. Lucas Road Six-inch Waterline Loop 
Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $1,350.00  $1,350 
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1  $ 5,000.00  $5,000 
Temporary erosion control including operational control of 
SW3P 

1  $ 1,000.00  $1,000 

Furnish and Install Trench Safety system, design and 
implementation 

105  $ 1.75  $184 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 12" Water Line as needed, 
Furnish and Install 12"x6" Tee 

1  $ 2,750.00  $2,750 

Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1  $ 500.00  $500 
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 1  $ 1,500.00  $1,500 
Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/Class "B" 
Embedment 

105  $ 45.00  $4,725 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/14" Steel Casing 
by Boring and Jacking 

40  $ 275.00  $11,000 

Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

70  $1.25  $88 
 

Cedar Bend Trail 
Subtotal: 

$28,096 
 

Project Subtotal: $94,608 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1  $9,461.00  $9,461 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1  $9,461.00  $9,461  

Total: $113,530 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



47 | P a g e  
 

 
GRAHAM LANE AND ROCK RIDGE COURT EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE LOOP 

FROM COUNTRY CLUB ROAD TO ROCK RIDGE ROAD 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2018-2019 10 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$571,775 September 2016 Estimate  To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 30 homes. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $22,500.00 $22,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Erosion Control 1 $13,000.00 $13,000 
Trench Safety 5,230 $1.50 $7,845 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,115 $35.00 $109,025 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $260.00 $20,800 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by wet bore 185 $75.00 $13,875 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,115 $42.00 $88,830 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 90 $280.00 $25,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 6" Bend 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,085.00 $1,085 
Furnish & install 6" Valve 1 $400.00 $400 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 4 $500.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install 8"x6" reducer 1 $700.00 $700 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $10,000.00 $10,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 9 $4,000.00 $36,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $4,500.00 $4,500 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 28 $1,500.00 $42,000 
Block Sod 8,000 $7.00 $56,000 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

3,625 $1.25 $4,531 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $49,617 $49,617 



48 | P a g e  
 

Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $49,617 $49,617  
Total: $571,775 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



49 | P a g e  
 

 
SNIDER LANE EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2018-2019 11 Water Complete 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Cost  Source of Funding 
$594,549 September 2016 Estimate 
$xxxx Actual 

Impact Fees 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is a requirement of the Lakeview Downs subdivision, add fire hydrants, and will improve water 
quality on the east side of Lucas. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2018 - Complete 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $23,500.00 $23,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $6,500.00 $6,500 
Erosion Control 1 $15,000.00 $15,000 
Trench Safety 6,075 $1.50 $9,113 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 6,075 $42.00 $255,150 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $280.00 $22,400 
Furnish & install 8" PVC Creek Crossing, by bore and jacking  50 $330.00 $16,500 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 270 $90.00 $24,300 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
Furnish & install 8” Tee 1 $900.00 $900 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 7 $500.00 $3,500 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 13 $4,000.00 $52,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,225.00 $2,225 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 20 $1,500.00 $30,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 1 $500.00 $500 
Block Sod 1,000 $7.00 $7,000 
Seeding 12,500 $1.25 $15,625 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $51,593 $51,593 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $51,593 $51,593  

Total: $594,549 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 



50 | P a g e  
 

GLENCOVE CIRCLE AND CRESTVIEW CIRCLE SIX-INCH EXTENSIONS TO 
BROCKDALE PARK ROAD EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE LOOPS 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2018-2019 12 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$224,255 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 15 homes and add fire hydrants to the area. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $9,000.00 $9,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,100.00 $5,100 
Trench Safety 1,965 $1.50 $2,948 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 1,965 $35.00 $68,775 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $260.00 $10,400 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by wet bore 180 $75.00 $13,500 
Furnish & install 6" Bend 1 $2,500.00 $2,500 
Furnish & install 6" Valve 2 $400.00 $800 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 4 $4,000.00 $16,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $7,750.00 $7,750 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 14 $1,500.00 $21,000 
Block Sod 3,000 $7.00 $21,000 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

1,375 $1.25 $1,719 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $19,382 $19,382 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $19,382 $19,382  

Total: $224,255 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



51 | P a g e  
 

 
HICKORY HILL STREET EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE 

FROM STINSON ROAD TO BROOKHAVEN DRIVE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2019-2020 13 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$226,383 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 12 homes. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $9,000.00 $9,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,300.00 $5,300 
Trench Safety 2,120 $1.50 $3,180 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,120 $42.00 $89,040 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $280.00 $11,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 3 $500.00 $1,500 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 2 $4,000.00 $8,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $1,800.00 $1,800 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 12 $1,500.00 $18,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Block Sod 3,015 $7.00 $21,105 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

1,175 $1.25 $1,469 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $19,645 $19,645 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $19,645 $19,645  

Total: $226,383 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



52 | P a g e  
 

MANOR LANE EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2019-2020 14 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$313,951 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate an undersized four-inch line, add fire hydrants, and improve the water looping between 
Estelle Lane and Winningkoff Road. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $12,500.00 $12,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
Erosion Control 1 $7,500.00 $7,500 
Trench Safety 3,010 $1.50 $4,515 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,010 $42.00 $126,420 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $280.00 $11,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 115 $90.00 $10,350 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 3 $500.00 $1,500 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $6,250.00 $6,250 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 6 $4,000.00 $24,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 6 $1,500.00 $9,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 5 $500.00 $2,500 
Block Sod 5,025 $7.00 $35,175 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

1,675 $1.25 $2,094 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $27,148 $27,148 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $27,148 $27,148  

Total: $313,951 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



53 | P a g e  
 

ROCK RIDGE ROAD 12-INCH WATERLINE FROM ESTATES PARKWAY TO 
FAIRBROOK CIRCLE AND FAIRBROOK CIRCLE EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2019-2020 15 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$491,953 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 23 homes. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $19,500.00 $19,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Erosion Control 1 $10,400.00 $10,400 
Trench Safety 4,165 $1.50 $6,248 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 925 $42.00 $38,850 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,240 $60.00 $194,400 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $320.00 $12,800 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by wet bore 120 $130.00 $15,600 
Furnish & install 12" Bend 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Furnish & install 12" Tee 1 $1,250.00 $1,250 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 5 $500.00 $2,500 
Furnish & install 12" Valve 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 9 $4,000.00 $36,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 14 $1,500.00 $21,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 6 $500.00 $3,000 
Block Sod 1,325 $7.00 $9,275 
Seeding 8,000 $1.25 $10,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $42,690 $42,690 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $42,690 $42,690  

Total: $491,953 



54 | P a g e  
 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



55 | P a g e  
 

 
REPAINT MCGARITY 200,000-GALLON GROUND STORAGE TANK 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2019-2020 16 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$150,150 September 2016 Estimate  To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Repaint 200,000-gallon ground storage tank at McGarity Pump Station 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Repaint existing 200,000-gallon ground storage tank 1 $120,000.00 $120,000 
Disinfect Tank 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $13,430.00 $13,430 
Engineering/Surveying Services (5%) 1 $6,730 $6,730  

Total: $150,150 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

  



56 | P a g e  
 

ENCHANTED WAY/BROOKHAVEN DRIVE EIGHT-INCH WATERLINE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Engineering 

Priority No. 
Category Project Status 

2019-2020 17 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$203,262 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will improve water quality and fire protection to 23 homes.  

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $500.00 $500 
Erosion Control 1 $1,400.00 $1,400 
Trench Safety 3,235 $1.50 $4,853 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,235 $42.00 $135,870 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $3,500.00 $3,500 
Block Sod 150 $7.00 $1,050 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

7,050 $1.25 $8,813 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $17,638 $17,638 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $17,638 $17,638  

Total: $203,262 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
  



57 | P a g e  
 

 
ROCK RIDGE ROAD/LOVEJOY HIGH SCHOOL EIGHT-INCH WATER LINE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  

Fiscal Year Engineering 
Priority No. 

Category Project Status 

2019-2020 18 Water Planning 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding 
$56,773 September 2016 Estimate To Be Determined 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project improves the looping on the west side of the city and improves water quality and fire protection 
at the high school. 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
PROJECT MANAGER:  City Engineer 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Description Estimated 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $1,800.00 $1,800 
Trench Safety 770 $1.50 $1,155 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 770 $42.00 $32,340 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $750.00 $750 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,500.00 $5,500 
Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

1,700 $1.25 $2,125 

Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $4,927 $4,927 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $4,927 $4,927  

Total: $56,773 
These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016.  The costs associated with 
rights-of-way, easements, property acquisition, permitting, mitigation, construction testing, and inspection are not 
included in the following information estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers. 

 
 

















City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

 
September 17, 2018 
 
To: City Council 
 
RE:  Planning and Zoning Commission in their capacity as the Capital Improvement Advisory 

Committee, Report and Written Comments on Updates to the Capital Improvement Plan, 
Land Use Assumptions, and Impact fees 

 
The City began the process of updating the Comprehensive Plan, Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP), and land use assumptions in 2014.  In April 2015 Metropolitan Infrastructure was retained 
to update the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and final updates were brought before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission in February 2017.  After extensive review by the Commission, all proposed 
recommended changes by the Commission were incorporated into the document and approved by 
the City Council. In 2018, BW2 Engineers was retained to update the City’s impact fees based on 
the amended CIP and land use assumptions.   
 
The latest revisions to the CIP since its approval in 2017 were updates to projects and timelines. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the updated CIP, land use assumptions, and 
impact fees at their September 13, 2018 Capital Improvement Advisory Committee meeting held 
as part of the regularly scheduled Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. The only changes 
recommend from the Commission were minor formatting errors, and clarification items which will 
be included in the document sent to City Council.  
 
With the updated land use assumptions from the CIP, the impact fees have changed. The current 
adopted impact fees are $1,040 per vehicle mile, or service unit for $4,400 for a single-family home 
for roadways, and $3,928.57 per service unit for water, making the water impact fee $5,500 for a 
one-inch meter. (the most commonly used meter). 
 
The amended maximum impact fees for road and water are as follows: 
• Water service unit of $3,473.00, equivalent to $4,862.00 for a one-inch meter the most 

commonly used size. 
• Road service unit of $2,133.77, equivalent to $9,047.18 for a single-family home. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the following: 
• Adopting a water impact rate of $3,473.00, equivalent to $4,862.00 for a one-inch meter the 

most commonly used size. 
• A road impact rate of $1,188.21, equivalent to $5,038 for a single-family home. 

These impact rates proposed will provide a small decrease in water impact fees, and a slight 
increase in road impact fees. These rates maintain the City at three percent or less of the project 
cost for all City fees. 
 
This report shall serve as the Advisory Committee’s written comments pursuant to Section 
395.056 of the Texas Local Government Code.  

http://www.lucastexas.us/


Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 

 
Requester: Special Projects Coordinator Kent Souriyasak 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss results of the Technology and Communication Survey and authorize the formation of a 
Community Technology Advisory Board for voluntary residents to consider solutions in 
improving the City’s technology and internet services. 
 
Background Information  
 
The Technology and Communication Survey was available electronically and in paper form to 
residents from September 24 through October 19. The survey was designed to explore strategies 
to address deficiencies and identify solutions to technology-related services available to Lucas 
residents. 
 
The survey consists of three components: (1) Residential Information, (2) Technology-related 
Services and (3) General Communication Questions. The survey grouped residents into four 
zones within the City limits and consisted of 14 multiple choice questions and one open feedback 
question. As of October 23, there was a total number of 400 surveys submitted to the City. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Technology and Communication Survey Results 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Special Projects Coordinator Kent Souriyasak recommends the formation of a Community 
Technology Advisory Board to include voluntary residents in discussing strategies and solutions 
to improve the City’s technology and internet services. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to authorize the formation of a Community Technology Advisory Board for 
voluntary residents to discuss strategies and solutions in improving the City’s technology and 
internet services. 



City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

 

Copy: Joni Clarke, City Manager 

 

From Kent Souriyasak, Special Projects Coordinator 

 

Re: Technology & Communication Survey 

 

Date: October 25, 2018 

 

As of October 23, the City of Lucas has received 400 surveys submitted in-paper and 

electronically from residents. The survey was designed to explore strategies to address 

deficiencies and identify solutions to technology-related services available to Lucas residents. 

The survey consists of three components: (1) Residential Information, (2) Technology-related 

Services, and (3) General Communication Questions. 

 

The following attachments are the results of the Technology & Communication Survey. The 

results are divided into the following: 

 

I. Overall Summary of Results 

i. Residential Information 

ii. Technology-related Services 

iii. General Communication Questions 

II. Summary of Zone Results 

i. Survey Zoning Map 

ii. Zone 1 

iii. Zone 2 

iv. Zone 3 

v. Zone 4 

vi. Additional Comments 

 

Based on the results and findings from the additional comments, I recommend the formation of a 

Community Technology Advisory Board to involve voluntary Lucas residents in discussing 

strategies and solutions to improve the City’s technology and internet services. 

http://www.lucastexas.us/


Overall Summary of Results 
Technology & Communication Survey 



RESIDENTIAL INFORMATION

1
Amherst Estates 5 Horseman Drive 2
Austin Trails 3 Huntwick Estates 16
Barry Farms 2 Kingswood Estates 3
Belmont Park 3 Kirkland Estates West 9
Blondy Jhune 3 Lakeview Estates 4
Bois D'Arc Manor Estates 2 Lemontree Estates 6
Bristol Park 1 Lucas Creek Estates 11
Broadmoor Estates 9 Lynn Lane 1
Brookhaven Ranch Estates 3 McGarity Lane 1
Carey Lane 1 McMillen Estates 4
Choice Acres 1 North Fork 4
Christian Lane 3 Pecan Grove 1
Cimarron 2 Petway Farms 2
Claremont Springs 11 Prado Verde 1
Coelen Addition 1 Ranch at Pecan Grove 3
Country Club 2 Ranch Estates 1
Creekside Estates 3 Reserve at Forest Grove 1
Creekwood Estates 3 Rockland Farms 7
Dream on a Creek 1 Rolling Hills 1
Edgefield Lane 2 Rollingwood 3
Edgewood Estates 5 Saddlebrook Estates 12
Ella Brooke Estates 2 Skyview Estates 2
Enchanted Creek 4 Snider Lane 4
Estates of Camden 6 Southview 1
Fitzhugh 1 Stinson Highlands 7
Ford Ranch 1 Stonegate 13
Forest Creek Estates 9 Suckling Estates 1
Forest Grove 5 Tara 8
Fox Glen 2 The Enclave 2
Gabriel Fitzhugh 1 The Meadows 2
Glenbrook Estates 7 Tokalaun Park & Estuary 2
Graham Lane 2 Travis Ranch Estates 2
Green Meadows Estate 4 Trinity Hills 1
Greengate 1 Wendy Lane 3
Heritage Estates 1 White Rock Estates 5
Hidden Meadows 1 Willow Creek 3
Hillcrest Ranch Estates 2 Winding Creek Reserve 1
Holly Lane 1 Windmere Estates 1
Holyoak Lane 1 Winningkoff 1
Honeysuckle Lane 1 Wolf Creek 10

Woodmoor 3

TOTAL RESPONSES 283

2
Zone 1 88
Zone 2 111
Zone 3 124
Zone 4 69
N/A 8
TOTAL RESPONSES 400

Please tell us the subdivision/neighborhood you live in:

Which Geographical Area do you reside in?



TECHNOLOGY

3
Yes 386
No 14
TOTAL RESPONSES 400

4
AT&T 169
Cellular Card 1
Frontier 81
Grande Communications 1
HughesNet 13
Rise Broadband 87
SuddenLink 30
Time Warner/Spectrum
Other 26
Dishnet 2
Verizon 4
Viasat 5
TOTAL RESPONSES 419

5
5 MB or less 64
20 MB or less 120
100 MB or less 119
> 100 MB 34
TOTAL RESPONSES 337

6
Cable 29
Cellular 28
DSL 81
Fiber 120
Hot Spot 6
Satellite 35
Twisted Pair 17
Other 5
Air Direct Sight 1
Antenna 4
Broadband 2
Fixed Tower 2
Hybrid 1
Line of Sight 4
Microwave 4
Radio 5
RF 1
Sight to Sight 1
VOIP 1
Water Tower 8
Wireless 9
TOTAL RESPONSES 364

7
Very Satisfied 56
Satisfied 140
Dissatisfied 125
Very Dissatisfied 45
TOTAL RESPONSES 366

Do you have access to the internet?

If yes, who is your Internet Service Provider?

What level of internet speed do you purchase?

What delivery method for your Internet service?

Please rate your level of satisfaction with your internet service provider.



COMMUNICATION

8
Excellent 107
Very Good 172
Fair 72
Poor 34
TOTAL RESPONSES 385

9
Never 55
Seldom 172
Sometimes 142
Frequently 121
TOTAL RESPONSES 490

10
City Website 159
Face-to-Face/Word of Mouth 67
Lucas Leader 332
Mailers 25
Newspapers 31
Nixle 156
Signage 138
Social Media 134
TOTAL RESPONSES 1042

11

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
City Website 65 91 55 47 15 3 2 1
Face-to-Face/Word of Mouth 9 4 13 18 16 40 26 13
Lucas Leader 254 74 30 9 7 3 0 0
Mailers 18 14 32 14 20 12 20 25
Newspaper 4 5 8 5 13 13 32 34
Nixle 103 36 35 14 16 5 7 7
Signage 26 14 43 50 33 28 5 5
Social Media 43 29 38 30 34 16 4 8
TOTAL RESPONSES 522 267 254 187 154 120 96 93

12
Breaking News 350
City Council Actions & Decisions 304
City Meeting & Agendas 263
City Programs & Services 214
Community Events 302
Law Enforcement & Fire Alerts 300
Policy & Ordinance Information 246
Public Notices 236
Special Projects 238
Other 3
Crime 1
Garage Sales 1
History 1
Internet 4
Road Construction 4
Volunteer 1
TOTAL RESPONSES 2468

13
Never 1
Seldom 6
Sometimes 20
Frequently 371
TOTAL RESPONSES 398

What types of information are you interested in?

How frequently do you read the Lucas Leader?

What is your overall opinion of City of Lucas communication?

How often do you use and/or access the City's website?

How do you currently receive information about the City?

What is your preferred way to receive news and information about the City?
(Rank Order: 1=Most Important, etc.)



14

Never 44
Seldom 116
Sometimes 171
Frequently 52
TOTAL RESPONSES 383

The City is considering the implementation of video streaming City Council meetings.
How likely would you be to utilize this program?



Summary of Zone Results 

Technology & Communication Survey 



SURVEY ZONING MAP 

Zone 1 – North of West Lucas Rd. & West of  Country Club Rd. (FM 1378) 

Zone 2 – East of Country Club Rd., North of Blondy Jhune Rd., & West of Orr Rd. 

Zone 3 – East of Country Club Rd., South of Blondy Jhune Rd., North of East Lucas Rd., & East of 

   Orr Rd. 

Zone 4 – South of West Lucas Rd. & South of East Lucas Rd. 

 

 



ZONE 1 Total Surveys Submitted 88

Amherst Estates 1
Claremont Springs 11
Edgefield Lane 1
Ella Brooke Estates 2
Fitzhugh 1
Fox Glen 2
Gabriel Fitzhugh 1
Glenbrook Estates 6
Graham Lane 2
Green Meadows Estate 4
Greengate 1
Hidden Meadows 1
Kingswood Estates 3
Lemontree Estates 6
Lynn Lane 1
McGarity Lane 1
Ranch Estates 1
Saddlebrook Estates 12
Skyview Estates 2
Stonegate 1
Travis Ranch Estates 2
Windmere Estates 1

TOTAL RESPONSES 63

AT&T 56
Cellular Card
Dishnet 1
Frontier 1
Grande Communications
HughesNet 1
Other 1
Rise Broadband 12
SuddenLink 12
Time Warner/Spectrum
Verizon 1
Viasat 1
TOTAL RESPONSES 86

Subdivision/Neighborhood

Internet Service Provider

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Zone 1 ‐ Subdivision/Neighborhood

65%

2%

1%

1%

1%

14%

14%

1%
1%

Zone 1 ‐ Internet Service Provider

AT&T

Cellular Card

Dishnet

Frontier

Grande Communications

HughesNet

Other

Rise Broadband

SuddenLink

Time Warner/Spectrum

Verizon



Very Satisfied 8
Satisfied 32
Dissatisfied 35
Very Dissatisfied 11
TOTAL RESPONSES 86

Excellent 11
Very Good 47
Fair 20
Poor 5
TOTAL RESPONSES 83

Internet Satisfaction

City of Lucas Communication

9%

37%
41%

13%

Zone 1 ‐ Internet Satisfaction

Very Satisfied

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Very Dissatisfied

13%

57%

24%

6%

Zone 1 ‐ City Communication

Excellent

Very Good

Fair

Poor



ZONE 2 Total Surveys Submitted 111

Amherst Estates 4
Barry Farms 2
Blondy Jhune 3
Broadmoor Estates 9
Coelen Addition 1
Country Club 2
Creekside Estates 3
Dream on a Creek 1
The Enclave 2
Ford Ranch 1
Forest Creek Estates 8
Forest Grove 5
Horseman Drive 1
Lucas Creek Estates 10
North Fork 4
Pecan Grove 1
Private Rd 1
Ranch at Pecan Grove 3
Reserve at Forest Grove 1
Stonegate 12
Suckling Estates 1
White Rock Estates 5
Wolf Creek 10

TOTAL RESPONSES 90

AT&T 54
Cellular Card 1
Frontier
Grande Communications 1
HughesNet 3
Other 1
Rise Broadband 34
SuddenLink 14
Time Warner/Spectrum
Viasat 4
TOTAL RESPONSES 112

Subdivision/Neighborhood

Internet Service Provider

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Zone 2 ‐ Subdivision/Neighborhood

48%

1%

1% 3%1%

30%

12%

4%

Zone 2 ‐ Internet Service Provider

AT&T

Cellular Card

Frontier

Grande Communications

HughesNet

Other

Rise Broadband

SuddenLink

Time Warner/Spectrum

Viasat



Very Satisfied 3
Satisfied 26
Dissatisfied 37
Very Dissatisfied 44
TOTAL RESPONSES 110

Excellent 14
Very Good 58
Fair 26
Poor 11
TOTAL RESPONSES 109

Internet Satisfaction

City of Lucas Communication

3%

24%

33%

40%

Zone 2 ‐ Internet Satisfaction

Very Satisfied

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Very Dissatisfied

13%

53%

24%

10%

Zone 2 ‐ City Communication

Excellent

Very Good

Fair

Poor



ZONE 3 Total Surveys Submitted 124

Bois D'Arc Manor Estates 2
Choice Acres 1
Christian Lane 3
Cimarron 2
Creekwood Estates 3
Edgefield Lane 1
Edgewood Estates 5
Forest Creek Estates 1
Glenbrook Estates 1
Hillcrest Ranch Estates 2
Holly Lane 1
Holyoak Lane 1
Honeysuckle Lane 1
Huntwick Estates 15
Lakeview Estate 3
Lucas Country Estates 2
Lucas Creek Estates 1
McMillen Estates 4
Petway Farms 2
Rolling Hills 1
Rollingwood 3
Snider Lane 3
Tara 8
Tokalaun Park & Estuary 2
Trinity Hills 1
Wendy Lane 3
Willow Creek 3
Winding Creek Reserve 1
Winningkoff 1

TOTAL RESPONSES 77

AT&T 55
Cellular Card
Dishnet 1
Frontier 16
Grande Communications
HughesNet 4
Rise Broadband 39
SuddenLink 3
Time Warner/Spectrum
Verizon 2
TOTAL RESPONSES 120

Subdivision/Neighborhood

Internet Service Provider

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Zone 3 ‐ Subdivision/Neighborhood

46%

1%

13%

3%

32%

3%

2%

Zone 3 ‐ Internet Service Provider

AT&T

Cellular Card

Dishnet

Frontier

Grande Communications

HughesNet

Rise Broadband

SuddenLink

Time Warner/Spectrum

Verizon



Very Satisfied 15
Satisfied 51
Dissatisfied 26
Very Dissatisfied 26
TOTAL RESPONSES 118

Excellent 21
Very Good 63
Fair 23
Poor 10
TOTAL RESPONSES 117

Internet Satisfaction

City of Lucas Communication

13%

43%22%

22%

Zone 3 ‐ Internet Satisfaction

Very Satisfied

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Very Dissatisfied

18%

54%

20%

8%

Zone 3 ‐ City Communication

Excellent

Very Good

Fair

Poor



ZONE 4 Total Surveys Submitted 69

Austin Trails 3
Belmont Park 3
Bristol Park 1
Brookhaven Ranch Estates 3
Carey Lane 1
Enchanted Creek 4
Estates of Camden 6
Heritage Estates 1
Huntwick 1
Kirkland Estates West 9
Lakeview Country Estates 1
The Meadows 2
Prado Verde 1
Rockland Farms 7
Southview 1
Snider Lane 1
Stinson Highlands 7
Woodmoor 3

TOTAL RESPONSES 55

AT&T 1
Cellular Card
Frontier 63
Grande Communications
HughesNet 1
Other 1
Rise Broadband 1
SuddenLink
Time Warner/Spectrum
Verizon 1
TOTAL RESPONSES 68

Subdivision/Neighborhood

Internet Service Provider

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Zone 4 ‐ Subdivision/Neighborhood

2%

93%

2%1%1%1%

Zone 4 ‐ Internet Service Provider

AT&T

Cellular Card

Frontier

Grande Communications

HughesNet

Other

Rise Broadband

SuddenLink

Time Warner/Spectrum

Verizon



Very Satisfied 7
Satisfied 20
Dissatisfied 14
Very Dissatisfied 6
TOTAL RESPONSES 47

Excellent 17
Very Good 33
Fair 14
Poor 4
TOTAL RESPONSES 68

Internet Satisfaction

City of Lucas Communication

15%

42%

30%

13%

Zone 4 ‐ Internet Satisfaction

Very Satisfied

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Very Dissatisfied

25%

48%

21%

6%

Zone 4 ‐ City Communication

Excellent

Very Good

Fair

Poor































Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider appointing a member to the initial North Central Texas Council of Governments 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications District Board.   
 
Background Information  
 
The North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) administers 9-1-1 services to 
cities under the direction of the Texas Commission on State Emergency Communications.  In the 
84th Legislative Session, a law was passed that allowed Councils of Governments to form 9-1-1 
districts whereby all fees collected from citizens or businesses within these districts are remitted 
directly to that district to be used for the provision of 9-1-1 services.  The City Council passed 
Resolution R 2016-04-00448 in support of that district creation within the NCTCOG region.  
 
State law stipulates that an initial board meeting of the NCTCOG 9-1-1 Emergency 
Communications District must of the be held to determine the size and qualification of a 
permanent board. The initial board is comprised of elected officials.  The City is not required to 
appoint a representative, but an appointment must be received by the NCTCOG by November 
16.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Letter from NCTCOG  
2. Resolution R 2016-04-00448 approving creation of Regional Emergency Communication 

District  
3. Resolution R 2018-11-00477 Appointing member to initial 9-1-1 District Board  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to appoint _______________ to the NCTCOG initial 9-1-1 Emergency 
Communications District Board.  
 









Page 1 City of Lucas/Resolution No. 2018-11-00477 
(Appointing Member to Initial 9-1-1 NCTCOG District Board)  

 

RESOLUTION NO. R 2018-11-00477 
[Appointing Member to initial 9-1-1 NCTCOG District Board]  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE INITIAL 9-1-1 DISTRICT 
BOARD OF THE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF 
GOVERNMENTS 9-1-1 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT 
BOARD. 
 

WHEREAS, the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) is the regional planning 
commission for the 16-county North Central Texas region and provides 9-1-1 service under contract 
with the Texas Commission  on State Emergency Communications (CSEC); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the jurisdictions receiving 9-1-1 services from NCTCOG have determined that creating 
a regional emergency communication district pursuant to Texas Health & Safety Code Chapter 
772.601 to locally administer such services is preferable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on April 6, 2017, the City of Lucas passed a resolution approving the district’s creation; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, NCTCOG will serve as the fiscal and administrative agent for the district consistent 
with Texas Health & Safety Code Chapter 772.609; and 
 
WHEREAS, the district will be governed by a board of managers, with an initial board composed of 
primarily elected officials appointed by the governing bodies of participating counties and 
municipalities responsible for establishing the size of the board and the qualifications of board 
members; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lucas wishes to have an appointee serve on the initial board, count towards 
purposes of determining a quorum, and has identified a qualified individual to attend the initial board 
meeting anticipated to occur on December 5, 2018 in Arlington, Texas.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Lucas appoints __________________ to serve on the initial North Central 
Texas 9-1-1 Emergency Communications District Board.  
 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall be transmitted to NCTCOG.  
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the 1st day of November, 2018. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED:  
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary    Jim Olk, Mayor 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider cancelling the December 20, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 
Background Information  
 
The second City Council meeting in December is December 20, 2018.  Due to its close proximity 
to the Christmas holiday, staff is proposing this meeting be cancelled.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. December calendar of events  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
Staff recommends cancelling the December 20, 2018 City Council meeting. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to cancel the December 20, 2018 City Council meeting.  

 



December 2018 
 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 

2 3 4 
 
 

5 6 
City Council 
Meeting 

7 
Country 
Christmas 

8 

9 10 
 
 

11 12 13 
Planning and 
Zoning Meeting 

14 
 
 

15 

16 
 
 

17 18 19 20 
City Council 
Meeting 

21 22 

23 24 
Christmas 
Holiday 
(City offices closed) 

25 
Christmas 
Holiday 
(City offices closed) 

26 27 28 29 

30 31 
 
 

     

  

http://www.calendarlabs.com/holidays/us/christmas.php
http://www.calendarlabs.com/holidays/us/christmas.php


Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

November 1, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session.   
 
There are no items scheduled for Executive Session.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - 11-01-2018 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	November 1, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, November 1, 2018 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authoriz...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 10-18-2018 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	October 18, 2018
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Regular Agenda

	03B - Ordinance Updating Impact Fees (2018)
	03c - swf CIP final version - 20180907 w PZ changes
	Introduction
	Goals
	Development Process
	Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2016-2020
	Project Criteria
	CIP Amendment
	CIP Project Prioritization
	Roadway and Trail Project CIP At-A-Glance
	Water System Projects CIP At-A-Glance

	03d - 2018 Water & Roadways Impact Fees
	03e - CIP letter
	04 - Regular Agenda - Technology & Communication Survey Results
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - Technology & Communication Survey Results
	05 - NCTCOG 911 District Board appointment
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05a - Letter from NCTCOG re appointment
	05b - 2016-04-00448 - Supporting Creation of Regional Emergency Communications District
	05c -Resolution 2018-11-00477 Appointing to NCTCOG 911 Board
	06 - Cancelling Dec 20 meeting
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06a - December 2018 calendar
	07 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion




